
 
Chowan County Board of Commissioners 

SPECIAL Meeting 
Monday, August 2, 2021 

Chowan County Public Safety Center 
305 West Freemason Street 

5:00pm 
 

AGENDA 
 

The Chowan County Board of Commissioners held a special meeting on Monday, August 2, 
2021 at 5:00pm before the regular 6pm meeting. The special meeting was held in the Chowan 
County Public Safety Center (305 West Freemason St. Edenton, NC).  
 
Present Chair Bob Kirby, Commissioners, Chris Evans, Larry McLaughlin (came in later), Alex 
Kehayes, Ron Cummings and Ellis Lawrence. 
 
Commissioner Tray Taylor was absent. 
 
Staff present County Manager Kevin Howard County Attorney Lauren Arizaga-Womble and 
Board Clerk Susanne Stallings. 
 
Closed Session 
Commissioner Cummings moved to go into closed session in accordance with NCGS 
143.318.11.a.3 and 4 (attorney client and economic development). Chair Kirby asked for all in 
favor, the motion passed unanimously (5-0). 
 
The minutes of the closed session are sealed. 
 
Commissioner Evans moved to come out of closed session. Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, 
the motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 
Commissioner Evans moved that the meeting be adjourned. Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, 
the motion passed unanimously (6-0). 
 

 
Regular Meeting 

Monday, August 2, 2021 
6:00 pm 

Chowan County Public Safety Center 
305 West Freemason Street 

 
This meeting was recorded. A copy of the recording is in the meeting file labeled August 2, 2021. 

 
Present Chair Bob Kirby, Commissioners, Chris Evans, Larry McLaughlin, Tray Taylor, Alex 
Kehayes, Ron Cummings and Ellis Lawrence. 
 



Staff present County Manager Kevin Howard, Finance Officer Cathy Smith and Board Clerk 
Susanne Stallings. 
 
Regular Meeting 
Chair Kirby called the regular meeting to order and led all in the pledge of allegiance.  
 
Commissioner Cummings then offered the invocation. 
 
Approval of Agenda  
Ms. Stallings noted the following requested agenda amendment: 

- Amend #4 to add consideration of approval of a letter of support 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the agenda as amended. Chair Kirby asked for all 
in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
Public Comment 
Ms. Stallings noted that no public was signed up to speak. 
 
Consent Agenda 

 
Commissioner Evans moved to approve the consent agenda as presented. Chair Kirby asked for 
all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
Atlantic Telecommunications Membership Cooperative (ATMC) Presentation 
Jody Heustess VP of Marketing and Jeremy Noble with Atlantic Telecommunications 
Membership Cooperative (ATMC) presented the Board with information on their grant 
application to bring an all fiber optic internet service to Chowan and Perquimans Counties. Mr. 
Heustess stated that the grant would provide fiber internet to 5,515 individuals (5,099 were 
unserved). He stated they will know by Thanksgiving if their application is approved for funding.  
He stated this project is of no financial obligation for the County and ATMC is using its own 
matching funds.  
 
Commissioner Lawrence asked if the fiber will be buried or above ground. 
 
Mr. Heustess stated it will be buried. 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin asked about potential growth. 
 
Mr. Heustess stated that the grant is to serve unserved areas. 
 



Commissioner Evans asked if all 5,000 people are in Chowan County. 
 
Mr. Heustess stated that it is split between Perquimans and Chowan Counties. 
 
Mr. Howard noted this number is the number of homes not people. 
 
Mr. Heustess stated it will impact both Counties. 
 
Commissioner Kehayes stated he hoped they were awarded the grant, he asked if there are any 
constraints regarding how much they charge for the internet. 
 
Mr. Heustess stated that there are some discount programs for low income families and the goal 
is to make the service affordable.  
 
Chair Kirby asked staff about the letter of support that is part of the request. 
 
Ms. Arizaga-Womble stated that the letter will state the County supports the application and no 
matching funds from the County will be used. 
 
Commissioner Cummings moved to approve the letter of support. Chair Kirby asked for all in 
favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
Public Hearing USDA Funds Application 
 
A public meeting was held on August 2, 2021 at 6:00 pm at the Chowan County Public Safety 
Center, 305 West Freemason St. Edenton, NC.  The purpose of the meeting was to receive public 
comment on the Board of Commissioners intent to file an application with USDA Rural 
Development for the construction of John A. Holmes High School.  

Commissioner McLaughlin moved to open the floor for the public hearing. Chair Kirby asked 
for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).   

Board Clerk Susanne Stallings noted the public hearing was duly advertised in the Chowan 
Herald to allow for the public to provide any comments on the application. She noted that no 
public comment was submitted to her office and no speakers had signed up to provide any 
comment. 

Chair Kirby asked if anyone in the audience wished to provide public comment on the proposed 
project, there was none. 

It was noted the Board voted and approved the USDA loan application at their June 21, 2021 
meeting and no further action was required. 

Being no further public comment Commissioner Kehayes moved to close the public hearing. 
Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0).   

Chowan County and Edenton-Chowan Board of Education MOU 
The Board considered a “Cooperative Agreement Regarding The Improvement, Renovation, 
Construction and Equipping of John A. Holmes High School. 
 



Mr. Howard noted that the guidelines state how to handle the project. 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the MOU as presented. Chair Kirby asked for all 
in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT REGARDING THE IMPROVEMENT, RENOVATION, CONSTRUCTION 

AND EQUIPPING OF JOHN A. HOLMES HIGH SCHOOL 

 

This COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT regarding the IMPROVEMENT, RENOVATION, 
CONSTRUCTION and EQUIPPING of JOHN A. HOLMES HIGH SCHOOL, made and entered into this 
_____ day of August, 2021 here in after referred to at times as the “Agreement” by and between COUNTY 
OF CHOWAN, North Carolina, a body politic and corporate and a political subdivision existing under the 
laws of the State of North Carolina, hereinafter referred at times as (the “County) and the CHOWAN 
COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION, a politic and corporate existing under the laws of the State of North 
Carolina, hereinafter referred to at times as (the "Board" or the body "Board of Education"), each as a 
"Party" and together the "Parties" to this Agreement. 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, the County is a political subdivision existing under the laws of the 
State of North Carolina vested with the powers and authority conferred upon counties by 
the laws of the State of North Carolina, acting through its Board of Commissioners. 

WHEREAS, the Board of Education is a body politic and corporate existing under 
the laws of the State of North Carolina and is the governing board of the Chowan County 
local school administrative unit of the public school system of the State of North Carolina, 
vested with the powers and authority conferred upon boards of education by the laws of 
the State of North Carolina; 

WHEREAS, N.C.G.S. § 115C-521 imposes upon the Board of Education a duty 
to provide classroom facilities that adequately meet the needs of students in Chowan 
County; 

WHEREAS, the Board has heretofore determined that improvement, renovation 
and/or reconstruction, and equipping is necessary John A. Holmes High School.  

WHEREAS, the County appropriates funding to the Board of Education for school 
capital improvement purposes and the County is authorized to borrow money and issue 
its bonds under the Local Government Bond Act (Article 4 of Chapter 159 of the North 
Carolina General Statutes) to pay capital costs of providing school facilities; 

WHEREAS, on April 19, 2021 the Board of County Commissioners voted to proceed 
with long-term financing of certain costs, including financing costs and other necessary or 
incidental, of improvements, renovations, construction and equipping of  John A. Holmes 
High School (the "JAH High School Project" and sometimes the "Project") through the 
Community Facilities program of the United States Department of  Agriculture, Rural 
Development (the "USDA") because USDA offers a financing term at an interest rate 
more advantageous to the County than other available financing options; 



WHEREAS, USDA requires the County to issue interim financing for and during 
the development and construction of the JAH High School Project for which the County may 
issue short-term bond anticipation notes to be sold at public or private sale by and in 
accordance with the requirements of the North Carolina Local Government Commission; 

WHEREAS, on or about September 9, 2020 the County was awarded a grant by 
the North Carolina Department of Public Instruction in the amount of $15 million from the 
Needs-Based Public School Capital Fund that was established by the North Carolina 
General Assembly pursuant to Session Law 2017-57, Section 5.3, as modified by Session 
Law 2017-212, Section 1.1 and Session Law 2018-5, Section 5.3 to be used for 
construction of new school buildings at John A. Holmes High School and such grant 
includes conditions including a matching fund requirement for the County to provide one 
dollar in local funds for every three dollars provided under the grant as well as required 
project review by and reporting to the North Carolina Department of Public Instruction; 

WHEREAS, the County and the Board desire the County to finance the costs of 
the JAH High School Project pursuant to the powers and authority granted by North 
Carolina law utilizing funds received under the above-described grant and from the 
issuance of notes and USDA funding. 

WHEREAS, the receipt of funds from the Needs-Based Public School Capital 
Fund, the USDA and any other lender or underwriter providing interim or long-term 
financing for the JAH High School Project (each a "Funding Source" and together, the 
"Funding Sources") is subject to a number of requirements and conditions to be fulfilled 
in a timely manner and as holder of the Supervisory Powers (as defined below) the Board 
agrees to cause such requirements and conditions to be fulfilled and to present the 
County in a timely fashion with all instruments, agreements and other documents for 
review and approval as needed ; 

WHEREAS, collaboration between County, and its staff, and the Board, and its 
staff, benefits the taxpayers of Chowan County by ensuring that public funds are utilized 
in an optimal fashion to provide such capital improvements in a timely fashion and within 
budget and so as to facilitate the implementation of an orderly and effective plan for 
improvements, renovations, construction and equipping; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 20 of Chapter 160A of the North Carolina General 
Statutes, the County may exercise any power, function, public enterprise, right privilege, 
or immunity for and on behalf of the Board of Education as set forth in a written agreement 
between the Parties and the Board of Education may exercise any power, function, public 
enterprise, right privilege, or immunity for and on behalf of the County as set forth in a 
written agreement between the Parties; 

WHEREAS, the Parties hereto desire to enter into this Agreement to promote the 
excellence and continued viability of the Chowan County Public School System; 

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and of the mutual 
agreements and covenants contained herein and for other valuable consideration, the 



sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties do here by agree as follows: 
 

1. PURPOSE.  
 

The purpose of this Agreement is to establish a procedure for the Parties to effectively 
communicate and collaborate during the process of improving, constructing, renovating 
and equipping the JAH High School Project in accordance with all applicable laws and 
regulations, including but not limited to requirements of the North Carolina Department of 
Public Instruction and any Funding Source. The Parties agree to undertake their 
respective duties in an open and cooperative way with the goal of completing the said 
JAH High School Project in a timely and cost-effective manner. As used herein equipping 
may include, but shall not be limited to, the purchase of furniture, furnishings, technology 
items, and such other items that may be deemed necessary to create an adequate 
educational facility. 

2. SUPERVISION OF THE PROJECT 
 

The Parties hereto agree and covenant that all supervisory powers with regard to the 
design, improvement, renovation construction, and equipping of the JAH High School 
Project (the "Supervisory Powers") shall be exercised in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement. The Supervisory Powers granted to the School Board in this Agreement are 
intended to satisfy the duties of the Board set forth in N.C.G.S. 115C-521. In exercising 
the Supervisory Powers, the Board and the County and their employees and agents shall 
work with architects, engineers, contractors, and others as may be necessary and 
appropriate to complete the JAH High School Project as provided herein. The County and 
any Funding Source shall be involved in the design, improvement, renovation, 
construction, and equipping of the JAH High School Project on an ongoing basis, 
including but not limited to review of all documents related to cost projections, through 
regular consultation with the County, the County Manager, the Board, and the 
Superintendent of Schools. The Board shall oversee the design and equipping of the JAH 
High School Project in consultation with the architect. The County shall oversee the 
funding of the project and the disbursement of funds for the improvement, design, all 
construction and equipping of the JAH High School Project. The County and the Board 
shall jointly participate in the bidding for the Project in accordance with the terms of this 
Agreement. 
 

3. COVENANTS AS TO THE COMPLETION OF THE SCHOOL PROJECT.  
 

The Parties hereto agree as follows in connection with the design, improvement, 
renovation, construction and equipping of the JAH High School Project:  

A. The Parties to this Agreement shall cooperate to obtain all orders, permits or 
similar governmental approvals for the County to enter such contracts as may 
be necessary for the design, improvement, renovation, construction and 
equipping of the JAH High School Project. 
 

B. The Board will exercise its Supervisory Powers so as to ensure the design all 
construction, all contracts for, and equipping of the JAH High School Project 



will be carried on/out expeditiously in accordance with the plans and 
specifications therefore, all applicable ordinances and statutes, and in 
accordance with the requirements of all regularly constituted authorities having 
jurisdiction over same, including but not limited to all requirements of the North 
Carolina Department of Public Instruction and the USDA. 

 
C. The Parties hereto shall cause the construction of the JAH High School Project 

to be upon the real property presently owned by the Board and upon which is 
situated the presently existing JAH High School facility, in a manner that will 
not violate applicable use or other restrictions contained in prior conveyances 
or applicable protective covenants or restrictions and the Parties hereto shall 
each comply with and take actions necessary to fulfill all requirements of the 
Financing Sources relating to the design, all construction, all contracts for, and 
equipping of JAH High School Project. 

 
D. The Board and the County shall undertake procurement procedures in 

accordance with law on behalf of the County for the County to contract 
for the design, improvement, renovation, construction and equipping of 
the JAH High School Project. Such procedures shall be design-bid-build 
procedures and comply with any additional Funding Source requirements, 
subject to the terms and provisions herein set forth. The Parties agree that 
all bidding shall be carried out expeditiously in accordance with law. The 
County shall issue a request for qualifications for the selection of the architect 
for the Project (the "RFQ"). The RFQ shall be in the form attached hereto as 
Exhibit A which has been jointly developed by the County Manager and the 
Superintendent of Schools. The County Manager and Superintendent of 
Schools shall participate in the evaluation of the responses to the RFQ. 
The County Manager shall recommend the County enter contract 
negotiations with architectural firms based on the results of the evaluation 
process carried out by the County Manager and Superintendent of       
Schools.The contract with the architectural firm ultimately engaged will 
specify that the architect will prepare the bid packages  for the construction 
contractors and make recommendations for the selection of the 
construction contractor for the Project. The recommendations of the 
architect for the selection of the construction contractor for the Project shall 
be reviewed by the County Manager and Superintendent of Schools before 
being transmitted to the County for approval and contract award. 
 

E. The County shall enter into such contracts for the design, improvement, 
renovation, construction and equipping of the JAH High School Project that are 
consistent with the terms of this Agreement and that shall not cause the total 
cost of the JAH High School Project to exceed the amounts available as 
identified below in Section 3.h., and shall assume responsibility for approving 
change orders to such design, plans and specifications that the Board requests 
consistent with the terms of this Agreement. The Board shall also enter into 
such contracts for the design, improvement, renovation, construction and 
equipping of the JAH High School Project as a co-party with the County as may 



be required. 
 

F. The Financing Sources, their respective representatives and agents, and the 
County shall have the right to enter upon and inspect the site of the JAH High 
School Project (and any portion thereof) from time to time, before, during and 
after construction, and the Parties agree to cause any contractor or 
subcontractor to cooperate with the Financing Source(s) and their respective 
representatives and agents during such inspections. 
 

G. Payment of the costs of the JAH High School Project shall be made from 
Needs-Based Public School Capital Fund grant monies, from proceeds of notes 
issued and from other legally available funds, as specifically set forth below, all 
in accordance with applicable law. 

 
H. The Parties hereto agree that the size, scope, characteristics and complexity of 

the JAH High School Project will be limited by the amount of funds received 
from all sources, in a total amount not to exceed $50,000,000.00 (not more than 
$35,000,000.00 to be funded by the County under and in accordance with 
amounts borrowed by the County via USDA funding a portion of which shall be 
used as matching funds from the County as required under the terms of the 
Needs-Based Public School Capital Fund grant), not more than $15,000,000.00 
to be funded by Needs-Based Public School Capital Fund grant funds. The 
Board agrees that the costs of the JAH High School Project are not to exceed 
the said total sum of $50,000,000.00. The Board and County agree that the 
County will not borrow more than is necessary to complete the Project if the 
Project can be completed for an amount less than the total sum of 
$50,000,000.00. The Board and County agree the $35,000,000.00 borrowed 
by the County via USDA funding shall decrease if additional grant funds 
become available from any other source, unless otherwise approved by a vote 
of the Board of Commissioners. Parties acknowledge that use of Needs-Based 
Public School Capital Fund grant funds may be restricted to use for construction 
of new school buildings only and that Funding Sources may require that Needs-
Based Public School Capital Fund grant funds be spent, to the extent legally 
possible, prior to the expenditure of funds borrowed. If for any reason less than 
$15,000,000.00 in Needs-Based Public School Capital Fund grant funds are 
received for the JAH High School Project, the County shall not be responsible 
to provide any funds over and above the amount of $35,000,000.00 as set forth 
above to make up for such shortfall in grant funds. 
 

I. Notwithstanding anything herein before set forth, the Parties agree that any 
significant change orders or project modifications that would cause the overall 
cost of the JAH High School Project to exceed the sum set out above shall be 
subject to mutual approval by the parties hereto and all applicable Funding 
Sources. 
 

J. Each Party to this Agreement shall use its best efforts to cause the 
improvement of the JAH High School Project to be completed in timely and 
efficient manner. 



 
4. COLLABORATION BETWEEN THE PARTIES. 

 
The County is responsible for the funding of the JAH High School Project and for entering 
related design and construction contracts, all as described above. The County Manager 
will execute all contracts for and on behalf of the County in timely manner. As described 
herein, the Board is responsible for the design, participating in the RFQ process for 
selection of the Project architect, and construction of the Project. The County Manager is 
hereby tasked with the sole and exclusive responsibility of presenting recommendations 
regarding all matters arising from the JAH High School Project (i.e. all matters with regard 
to the design, bidding, construction, equipping, etc. of the Project) to the County for its 
acceptance and/or approval. The Superintendent of Schools is hereby tasked with the 
sole and exclusive responsibility of presenting recommendations regarding all matters 
arising from the JAH High School Project to the Board for its acceptance and/or approval. 
 

A. Meetings. The County Manager and Superintendent of Schools shall meet at 
least monthly at a mutually agreed upon location. 
 

B. Responsibility. The County Manager and Superintendent of Schools shall bear the 
responsibility of discussing, evaluating, and resolving County and Board concerns, 
questions, expectations, project progress, compliance by contractors and others. 
As hereinbefore indicated, the County Manager and Superintendent of Schools 
are tasked with the sole and exclusive responsibility of presenting 
recommendations regarding all matters arising from the JAH High School Project 
(i.e. all matters with regard to the design, bidding, construction, equipping, etc. of 
the project) to the County for its acceptance and/or approval. 
 

C. Owner's Representative. In addition to the project architect and general contractor, 
the County and Board shall hire an independent owner's representative to oversee 
the progress of the Project, provide Project management assistance, advise the 
Parties on issues that arise during the Project such as timelines, delays, change 
orders, design modifications, and pay applications, and to otherwise advocate for 
the interests of the County and Board throughout the Project (the "Owner's 
Representative").The Owner's Representative shall report directly to both the 
Manager and the Superintendent of Schools. The costs associated with the 
Owner's Representative shall be included in the Project budget. 

5. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS: 
 

A. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is not intended for the benefit of any 
third party. The rights and obligations contained herein belong exclusively to the 
Parties hereto and shall not confer any rights or remedies upon any person or 
entity other than the Parties hereto. 
 

B. Purpose of Agreement, Financing. Costs. The purpose of this Agreement shall be 
to cause the completion of the JAH High School Project as provided for herein. 



The financing of the JAH High School Project shall be the obligation of the County 
and all costs associated therewith shall be borne by the County and paid from the 
Funding Sources and as described above. The JAH High School project is not 
expected to generate revenues. 
 

C. Ownership of Property. The site (i.e. the JAH High School property) and all related 
facilities, together with the construction herein contemplated, are presently owned 
by the Board of Education. The Parties agree to convey the site to the County with 
the appropriate agreements regarding occupancy and rights of reverter to the 
Board as necessary to take advantage of all sales tax rebates that may be 
available if the County were to own the site during construction of the Project. 
 

D. Administration and Execution of Undertaking. The County Manager and the 
Superintendent of Chowan County Schools are authorized to administer this 
Agreement on behalf of the County and the Board, respectively. 
 

E. Default by Others. In the event of default of any contractor or subcontractor under 
any contract for the JAH High School Project, the County and/or the Board, as 
appropriate, may proceed, independently or in conjunction with the other Party, to 
exhaust the remedies of the County and/or Board against such contractor in default 
and against each surety for the performance of such contractor. Unless some other 
disposition is approved by the County and/or Board, amounts recovered by way of 
damages, refunds, adjustments or otherwise in connection with the foregoing will 
be applied to pay the cost of the JAH High School Project, or, if recovered after 
completion of the project, will be paid to the County. 

 

In the event the County and/or Board determines that any contractor or supplier is 
in default or has breached any representation, warranty or service agreement, the 
County and/or Board, as appropriate, at its own expense, may proceed, 
independently or in conjunction with others, to exhaust all available claims, actions 
and remedies against such contractor or supplier and against any surety for the 
performance of any contracts or the representation, warranty or service agreement 
and the recovery of damages arising out of such default. The County and/or Board, 
as appropriate, may prosecute or defend any such action or proceeding or take 
any other appropriate action which the County and/or Board deems necessary or 
desirable in its own name. 

The County makes no express or implied warranty or representation of any kind 
whatsoever with respect to the JAH High School Project or any component part 
thereof to the Board or any other circumstance whatsoever with respect thereto, 
including, but not limited to, any warranty or representation with respect to the 
merchantability or the fitness or suitability thereof for any purpose; the design or 
condition thereof the safety, workmanship, quality or capacity thereof; compliance 
thereof with the requirements of any law, rule, specification or agreement 
pertaining thereto; any latent defect; the ability thereof to perform any function; that 
the funds advanced pursuant to any financing agreement, loan agreement of 



issuance of bonds will be sufficient (together with other available funds of the 
County) to pay the costs of the JAH High School Project; or any other characteristic 
of the JAH High School Project; and the benefits of any and all implied warranties 
and representations of the County are hereby waived by the Board. 

F. Reservation of Defense of Sovereign Immunity. Between the Board of Education 
and any third-party, the Board, to the extent permitted by law, hereby reserves the 
right and defense of sovereign immunity. Between the County and any third-party, 
the County, to the extent permitted by law, hereby reserves the right and defense 
of sovereign immunity. 
 

G. Severability. In the event any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or 
unenforceable by a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate 
or render unenforceable any other provision hereof. 
 

H. Termination of Agreement. This Agreement shall terminate when the JAH High 
School Project has been completed if not sooner terminated by mutual agreement 
of the Parties. For purposes of this Agreement, "completion" of the Project shall be 
deemed to have occurred once a certificate of occupancy has been issued for the 
school, all punch list items have been completed, and all claims related to the 
Project have been resolved. 
 

I. Board Not an Agent of County. The Board in carrying out its actions under this 
Agreement is acting as an independent contractor and is not an agent of the 
County in connection with this Agreement or in connection with any other 
agreement to which the Board and the County are Parties, and no such agency 
shall be implied from such agreements. 

 

J. Grant Funding Timeline. The Parties hereto stipulate, acknowledge, and agree that 
the Needs-Based Public School Capital Fund grant monies must be expended 
within one year of the beginning of the Project that is the subject of this Agreement 
pursuant to the terms of such grant. 

 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed and attested this 

Agreement by their duly authorized representatives as of the day and year first written 
above. 

COUNTY OF CHOWAN, NORTH CAROLINA 
 
** This MOU was amended at the September 2021 meeting** 
 
ARPA Committee Recommendation  
The ARPA Funds Committee met on July 14, 2021. He stated that the County received $2.7 
million from ARPA funds and one of the committee suggestions was to provide the County 
employees with Premium pay which is allowable under the ARPA Interim Rule. The committee 
recommends that staff bring a recommendation for the following: 
- Premium Pay 



Premium pay of 10% of the annual salary to all Essential Employees, an additional 5% for 
employees with a salary under $35,000 per year, an additional 5% for employees in Public 
Safety Positions (direct contact with the public). The total premium pay $565,952.07 the total 
including FICA and Retirement is $680,058.04 and upon Board approval will be in the employee 
paycheck dated 8/15/21. Additionally, the Board will consider the Premium pay policy. 
 

Chowan County 
Criteria for ARPA Premium Pay 

1. Period of Premium pay-from March 15, 2020 through May 14, 2021 {14 months). 
2. Premium pay will be paid to actively employed full-time and permanent part-time 
 employees. 
3. Premium pay is based on worked hours only. Telework hours are excluded from 
 Premium pay. 
4. Premium pay will be paid to "critical" employees. Employees are considered "critical" if 
 they were required to report to the office for work. 
5. Premium pay for critical employees will be a percentage of the employee's annual salary 
 being earned at May 14, 2021. The percentage will be based on the employee's position 
 and income level. Priority will be given to critical employees interacting with the public, 
 such as EMS and Sheriff. Priority will also be given to critical employees with an income 
 level below $35,000 per year. 
6. Critical employees in EMS and Sheriff’s Office will be paid Premium pay of 15% of 
 annual salary. This applies to employees in the field that interact with the public. 
 Administrative employees in those departments will be paid Premium pay of 10% of 
 annual their salary. 
7. Critical employees that earn an annual salary of $35,000 per year or less will be paid 
 Premium pay of 15% of their annual salary. 
8. All other critical employees will be paid Premium pay of 10% of their annual salary. 
9. In order to qualify for Premium pay, a critical employee must be actively employed as of 
 the date the Premium pay is paid. Premium pay will not be paid to terminated employees. 
 
Mr. Howard noted the ARPA Committee did discuss two other options for use of the additional 
ARPA funds which include Water Plan upgrades and Broadband initiatives.  
 
Commissioner McLaughlin stated he felt the Premium Pay was a good use of the ARPA funds.  
 
Chair Kirby stated that while he personally did not support the ARPA Act when it was passed he 
stated he saw an opportunity to thank employees who stuck with the County during the pandemic 
and were working. He stated this is an opportunity to thank the employees.  
 
Commissioner Evans moved to approve the plan as presented. Chair Kirby asked for all in favor, 
the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
Chair Kirby noted for the public that additional information on Broadband and Water projects 
will be discussed soon by the committee. 
 
Timbermill Wind Update 
Don Geicek with Timbermill Wind provided the Board with and update on the Timbermill wind 
project. A copy of the PowerPoint presentation and Development Timeline are in the meeting 



file labeled August 2, 2021.  He stated that he personally has been working on this project for 7 
years.  He stated that the Chowan County project has a capacity of up to 189MW with 45 total 
turbines. He stated the County provided Timbermill with a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in 
2016. He stated that in July 2017 the State of North Carolina implemented a wind moratorium 
that expired December 2018. The handout regarding the project timeline shows when various 
permit applications were applied for through July 2021.  He stated that in November 2021 
Timbermill plans to request a CUP extension from the County adding that additional extensions 
will be requested in April 2022 and October 2022.  He stated that they plan to have a building 
permit for the project by January 2023 and construction will begin at that time with December 
2023 being the anticipated commercial operations date. Additionally, he reviewed various 
benefits of the project including an estimated $800,000 per year average revenue stream for the 
County over 30 years.  He noted that Natasha Montague the Public Engagement Manager was 
also present with him to answer questions and shared the community grants that have been 
donated to various local organizations. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence stated that he feels that additional tax revenue is welcome. 
 
Commissioner Taylor asked how many jobs are anticipated. 
 
Mr. Geicek stated that there will be 150 construction jobs and 11 full time long term jobs. 
 
Commissioner Cummings asked how long Timbermill plans to own the site. 
 
Mr. Geicek stated that their model has another entity purchasing the project after it is completed. 
 
Commissioner Cummings asked if the CUP will go with the project. 
 
Mr. Geicek stated yes all permits and obligations transfer with the property. 
 
Commissioner Evans asked if a turbine has ever caught on fire and if so is the County prepared 
for response to that. 
 
Mr. Geicek stated that there are some videos online of fires he believes however they take safety 
very seriously. He stated that some of the tax revenues could be earmarked for the fire districts to 
allow for the purchase of fire equipment. 
 
Commissioner Kehayes noted that the megawatt size of the project has increased. 
 
Mr. Geicek stated the turbines are planned to be 591 feet and stated that they have been 
evaluated by various agencies. 
 
Commissioner Evans asked if the proposed turbines are in use at any other site. 
 
Mr. Geicek stated he was not sure, he stated that Apex has used other turbines manufactured by 
this company but he was not sure if they have any of the new design installed. 
 
Commissioner Kehayes asked how the state moratorium impacted the permitting process. 
 



 
 
Mr. Geicek stated that Timbermill has spent millions of dollars on the proposed project to date 
and he stated that the state moratorium did create a risk. He stated that Timbermill decided to get 
through the one year moratorium to minimize the expense and risk. 
 
Commissioner Kehayes asked if they will request an extension. 
 
Mr. Geicek explained the time constraints for waiting on various state and federal permits. He 
stated this will require Timbermill to ask for an extension from the County for the CUP. 
 
Commissioner Evans asked about the impact on adjoining property values. 
 
It was noted that this study was incorporated into the original CUP application. 
 
Chair Kirby provided the following written statement to be incorporated into the minutes, the 
written question/statement is in italics and the answers from Mr. Geicek are indicated below each 
question. Additional Board commentary is noted as well. 
 
Chairman Bob Kirby read: “First, I believe I need to apologize, in advance, to my fellow 
board members, County Staff, as well as the public assembled here this evening.  I have been a 
member of this Board for 2-years and 9-months, yet this is the first time that the folks from Apex 
Clean Energy Holdings, LLC and Timbermill Wind, LLC have provided our board with a project 
update since I assumed my seat on the board.  I have quite a few questions this evening, some of 
which I have wanted to ask since the original CUP Hearings were held back in 2016.  I was quite 
correctly and politely informed by Mr. Henry Campen, Esq, of Parker & Poe, who represented 
Timbermill Wind that I could not ask questions at that time because I did not have “standing”.  
In November 2018, the voters in my District very graciously honored me to be their elected 
representative, and so now I do have standing.  I do not intend to rehash matters relating to the 
CUP Hearings.  That is as they say, “water under the bridge.  I do fully intend to fulfill my oath 
of office and to ensure that the health, safety, and welfare of the Citizens of Chowan County 
remains a paramount goal of our Board.  My questions may take up a lot of time, however they 
reflect questions, concerns, and observations which I, as an elected official, have received from 
my constituents.” 

Chair Kirby asked if the slides provided in the presentation this evening marked “Confidential” 
as they have now been provided in a public forum, are no longer considered to be confidential. 

 
Mr. Geicek – Stated yes, he agreed the information is now public. 
 
Chair Kirby noted Slide 5, titled “Project Profile” lists the Total Capacity as “Up to 189 MW he 
stated that Mr. Geicek explained that he used a 4.2 MW Turbine but the application shows the 
maximum size as 3.6MW and how did that happen? 

 



Mr. Geicek stated that the technology and efficiency has improved over time. He stated that the 
larger MW provides more profit for the company, more revenue for the County and more income 
for the land owners. 

 
Mr. Kirby asked if there is a 3.6 model turbine is still available. 
 
Mr. Geicek stated he is unsure. He stated that he was unsure about the impact of this being a 
substantial change to the original project application. He stated this turbine has lower sound 
quality impact and is more efficient. 
 
Chair Kirby stated that a larger turbine may not be allowed in the building permit because the 
CUP is for 3.6MW. 
 
Ms. Womble noted that the amendment to the ordinance pertains to new applications and not this 
application which was filed prior to the text amendment. She noted that the standards in the 
ordinance were addressed during the CUP application which were the standards of that time prior 
to the text amendment. 
 
Mr. Geicek noted that the capacity of the turbines increased however he hoped that the number is 
not as important if the impact can be shown as less. He stressed the capacity is greater but he 
does not feel that the turbine is bigger. 
  
Commissioner Kirby asked if Mr. Geicek would be the site construction manager. 
 
Mr. Geicek stated he will remain involved but there will be a project construction manager who 
will take over but he will remain in the community but the construction would be supervised by a 
project construction manager. 
 
Chair Kirby noted that the time for construction appears to be under estimated he asked if 
construction would take 12 months. 
 
Mr. Geicek stated that the timeline does not allow for hurricanes or other potential delays 
however the construction manager estimates 9-12 months for construction. 
 
Chair Kirby asked what is the maximum timeline for construction. He stated that when the Board 
begins negotiations with Apex there will be a timeline discussed.  
 
Mr. Geicek stated he has seen delays from hurricanes however 9-12 months is the timeframe for 
construction. 
 
Chair Kirby stated that Slide 7, In July 2017 Apex indicates a Red Stop Sign symbol in July 
2017 along with the words, “NC passes wind moratorium (expired December 2018)”.  He stated 
his understanding is that this wind moratorium only applied to construction, and that it did not 
apply to planning or development. 
 



Mr. Geicek stated the moratorium did not stop the renewal of leases with landowners however 
the moratorium is a strong signal and a business decision is wise for the company to take that 
threat seriously. He stated that the wetlands delineation work cost about $275,000. He stated 
these are big ticket money items that have to be weighed by the moratorium was in place and the 
Navy radar system. 
 
Chair Kirby stated the moratorium did not stop the planning, that was a corporate decision. He 
stated that with respect to Slide 7 there is a little Anchor, adding that Apex’s Art Department is 
quite clever, but that slide indicates in June 2021, “DOD Clears all 45 turbines proposed for 
Timbermill.”  He stated he was a bit curious about this “clearance” he asked what is the 
procedure that Apex used to obtain this “clearance” he also asked if a permit was submitted? 
 
Mr. Geicek stated that there was a spreadsheet with coordinates of each turbine, there is no 
application. He discussed the procedure for the clearinghouse that takes the coordinates and runs 
a model. He stated that the FAA requires this for their overall process. He added he would 
provide a copy of the letter if the Board desired this. He stated there is no DNH in place. 
 
Chair Kirby asked if the FAA Form 7460-1 has been filed. 
 
Mr. Geicek stated yes. 
 
Chair Kirby asked if they will provide this to the Planner. 
 
Mr. Geicek stated yes. 
 
Chair Kirby stated that there are some permits that have not been applied for (State and Federal). 
 
Mr. Geicek stated that the only one that applies is the Army Corps and they have requested that 
the application be filed in that order. 
 
Chair Kirby stated that the NCDEQ application has been submitted and that paragraph 7 of the 
CUP has some bullet points. He noted that the Board is aware, based on an e-mail sent to 
Manager Howard, that Apex has submitted a pre-application to NCDEQ on June 16, 2021 for the 
required State Wind Permit.  Paragraph 7 of the approved CUP contained several bullets which 
list specific conditions applied to the CUP.  Of particular interest is the requirement that, “The 
study of the impact of the Timbermill Project on natural resources and uses, including avian, bat, 
and endangered and threatened species required by NCGS Section 143-215.119(a) (10) must be 
provided to the County at the time Timbermill submits its Wind Permit Application to DEQ.”   
He asked if Timbermill has completed the above noted natural resources impact study? 
 
Mr. Geicek stated that the studies are ongoing and that data is being compiled. He stated that 
there are people in the field now taking measurements. 
 



Chair Kirby stated that this project should be completed but some organizations are not doing 
what needs to be done. He stated in 2016 Commissioner Kehayes wanted to delay approval of 
the CUP until that study is done. 
 
Mr. Geicek stated that there are observations required of wildlife, he stated if one or two seasons 
go by, and you are not in a position to move forward, they may require you to do it again because 
things change. He stated that because of this, they send people back out in the field to do it again. 
 
Chair Kirby asked that USACE AJD Request.  Apex Clean Energy Holdings, LLC Chief 
Operating Officer, Mr. Ken Young Signed the letter with the permit application. He stated that 
the signature line for Mr. Ken Young also lists him as “manager of the sole member of the sole 
member of Timbermill Wind, LLC”.   
 
Mr. Geicek stated that did not sound correct. 
 
Chair Kirby asked if Mr. Geicek would clear that up. Then then asked if Mr. Ken Young the only 
member of this LLC? 
 
Mr. Geicek stated he was unsure. 
 
Chair Kirby stated that based on the signature line, Apex Clean Energy Holdings also appears to 
be an LLC.  He stated that if you go to the actual CUP Application, you see reference to a 
company called Apex Clean Energy, Inc.  He stated he was trying to build an understanding of 
the structure here. He noted that there is Apex Clean Energy, Inc., Apex Clean Energy Holdings, 
LLC, and Timbermill Wind, LLC.  Somewhere in the mountain of paperwork, he recalled seeing 
leases made in the name of Apex Atlantic Wind, LLC and Apex Wind Energy Holdings, LLC. 
He stated that he can understand who ultimately Chowan County will be working with, would 
you please expand upon the ownership of Timbermill Wind, LLC? 
 
Mr. Geicek stated he would look into it but Atlantic Wind sounded like a subsidiary of Amazon.  
 
Chair Kirby stated no these were the early leases from 2013/14. 
 
Chair Kirby stated that the AJD Request was prepared by a company called Hodges, Harbin, 
Newberry, & Tribble, Inc. (HHNT).  These consultants specialize in complex environmental 
permitting work.  According to their web page their corporate HQ is in Macon, Georgia, and 
they say that they have locations in Macon, GA; Savannah, GA; Atlanta, GA; Statesboro, GA; 
and Greenville, SC.  He stated that he knows that Apex has repeatedly made unsolicited 
promises of creating upwards of 152 local jobs – reference full page ad in Chowan Herald on 
May 13, 2021.  He stated he naturally would not expect Apex to find such an expert 
environmental consultant in Chowan County, or even in Elizabeth City, or perhaps even in 
Greenville, NC.  He stated he would, however, expect that such a consultant could be found in 
The Research Triangle, The Piedmont Triad, or surely in Charlotte.  Again, Apex went to 
Georgia, and thus the preparation of the AJD doesn’t factor into local job creation. He stated that 
back to the AJD itself.  On Page 462, Appendix G, Figure 1 “Parcel Map”.  There are two (2) 



Parcels of land identified as Map ID 1 and Map ID 2.  He asked the Clerk to pull these pages up. 
He stated that these parcels are in the vicinity of the intersection of Virginia Road and Center 
Hill Road.  These parcels were not previously identified by Apex in the CUP Application, and 
they are not contiguous with the Site Plan, TAB 18, of the Original CUP Application. He asked 
what is going on with these parcels of land? 
 
Mr. Geicek stated that during the civil design the consultant identified the need for construction 
access in that part of the project area. He stated that area is to negotiate from VA Highway to 
Centerhill Highway. He stated there is no turbine there. 
 
Chair Kirby stated that also, on this same Parcel Map, there is a Parcel of Land identified as Map 
ID 9 located off Center Hill Highway which appears to be located solely in Perquimans County.  
He asked what is going on here? 
 
Mr. Geicek stated that he was unsure what is going on in that area, he did not have all of the info 
however his recollection is that some of the Weyerhaeuser land has a recorded number of lands 
that is recorded in Chowan County. He stated there are no plans to do anything in Perquimans 
County. He stated this may need to be cleaned up. 
 
Chair Kirby noted a bit further on in the AJD Application, there is an “Appendix M, Table 1 – 
Figure 1 Parcels”.  It lists a Parcel Map ID 23 as belonging to Weyerhaeuser Co.  He stated that 
the parcel ID is listed as 780800856085A. He stated that the Parcel Map ID is incorrect. He 
noted that parcel ID 780600571592 owned by Mr. Fenton T. Eure, Jr. and Ms. Margie C. Eure is 
also incorrect. He noted that on page 464 of the AJD Application reflects some formatting errors 
with respect to Parcel ID.  For example, Map ID 2 is indicated to be associated with Parcel ID 
“7.806E+11” is incorrect formatting error. He asked that copies be sent to the County once they 
are corrected.   
 
Mr. Geicek stated he would correct it. 
 
Chair Kirby noted that on the NC Utilities Commission Permits, Apex has hired an 
environmental consultant called Merjent.  Their corporate Headquarters is in Minneapolis, MN 
and they have numerous offices throughout the country, however they do not list any offices in 
North Carolina. 
 
Mr. Geicek stated these firms are uniquely qualified and doing data analysis. He stated their 
windfarm experience is why they were selected. 
 
Chair Kirby stated that in December 2020, Timbermill Wind posted a document called 
“Economic and fiscal contribution to Chowan County, North Carolina” on its web site.  He noted 
the report was prepared by a company called Mangum Economics headquartered in Glen Allen, 
Virginia.  He noted he previously made comment on all the out-of-town consultants that Apex 
has hired for this project thus far.  He stated that page 1 of the report, paragraph 2 of the 
Executive summary, annual economic impact is estimated at 10 jobs with $347,709 in labor 



income.  Assuming uniformity, that means that each job will bring an income of $34,771., and 
assuming a 40-hour week, the pay will be about $16.70 per hour.  He asked if that is correct? 
 
Mr. Geicek stated that they identified that mistake as well. 
 
Chair Kirby stated that according to US News, the 2020 Median Pay for a Wind Turbine 
Technician is $52,910 or $25.43 per hour which is over 50% higher than this figure. 
 
Mr. Geicek stated he would like to provided an updated report from Mangum. He stated they 
project an 80,000 per year salary. 
 
Chair Kirby noted that on page 1 of the Economic Report, there is a reference to county tax 
revenue over a 30-year period.  He noted that in the CUP Application, the Decommissioning 
Report, TAB 5, states that it (the Decommissioning Report) is based on a 20-year project life.  
He asked is this a 20 or 30 year project. 
 
Mr. Geicek stated they anticipate a 30 year project. He stated an agreement with a utility is not 
yet in place but they anticipate 30 years. He stated they will have to put in a decommissioning 
report and that would be the time to update that. 
 
Chair Kirby asked if the reason that Apex plans to install larger 3.6 MW Turbines now due to 
Perquimans County rejecting the portion of the project originally slated for their County? 
 
Mr. Geicek stated no. He stated the turbine is better and quieter and generates more revenue for 
all. 
 
Chair Kirby asked if a final Turbine Selection for this project, and if so, what is the planned 
equipment? 
 
Mr. Geicek stated it is a Vestus V-150 4.2MW Turbine. He stated that the boss of Apex used to 
work for Vestus. 
 
Chair Kirby asked where will the Turbines be manufactured? 
 
Mr. Geicek stated he was not sure, he thinks a portion was made in Arizona but he is not certain 
because it is a European company.  
 
Chair Kirby stated he think it is Colorado. 
 
Mr. Geicek stated that may be correct. He stated that Nucor Steel is interested in their steel being 
used in turbines. He stated he can follow up on that. 
 
Chair Kirby asked if Apex ever installed an onshore Turbine with a blade tip height of 
approximately 586 feet to 600 feet. 
 



Mr. Geicek stated he was not sure. 
 
Chair Kirby asked if Apex will establish a physical presence in Chowan County such that 
purchase order(s) for major components, including the Turbines, reinforcing steel, concrete, 
equipment rentals, etc., will be issued from Chowan County and deliveries and payments be 
made from Chowan County thus providing for and retaining sales tax revenue in Chowan 
County?  
 
Mr. Geicek stated that he was not clear on the question or the process for sales tax. 
 
Chair Kirby explained how items purchased or delivered into the County if a business presence 
has been established in Chowan County, and if they are shipped to Chowan County, the sales tax 
would be collected and paid in Chowan County and that is significant revenue. 
 
Mr. Geicek stated that he was not clear on the process. 
 
Chair Kirby stated that the sales tax is paid at the point of purchase. He stated if the check is 
written in Charlottesville the sales tax will be paid in Charlottesville not Chowan County. He 
stated this could be significant for Chowan County. 
 
Chair Kirby stated that page 3-6 of the CUP Application refers to an O&M Building to be in 
Perquimans County.  He asked where this will be built. 
 
Mr. Geicek stated that they are looking internal to the site, either the Weyerhaeuser Land or just 
off of it. 
 
Chair Kirby asked if Apex has selected a company to complete the engineering scale design 
drawings required for the Project, and if so, will that company be local to Chowan County, the 
Albemarle Region, or somewhere in North Carolina? 
 
Mr. Geicek stated that the Timmons Group out of Richmond has been used. 
 
Chair Kirby asked What happens when the wind does not blow. 
 
Mr. Geicek stated that there are 4,000MW of solar. He stated their measurements show the wind 
blows here and fills a gap where the solar does not necessarily deliver. He stated the wind here is 
very strong early in the morning and it lasts up to 6-9am (depending on the month) and then it is 
really strong around supper time and thereafter.  He stated that there is a complimentary profile 
between wind and solar and Timbermill can hit that profile easily. He stated that a number of 
utilities is asking them to look at this and they want to figure out how to match the two.  He 
stated that the SW wind is the strongest.  When the wind doesn’t blow, solar is delivering and as 
they move forward the solution set is allowing for storage to be built in the system to build the 
load profile. 
 



Commissioner Cummings asked if DOT has been notified about the construction plan and the 
impact on the highways around the project. He stated his concern over the impact on the roads by 
the heavy equipment. 
 
Mr. Geicek stated that this was recently discussed with the Timmons Group, they are working 
with NCDOT and a 3rd party will be doing a transportation study. 
 
Commissioner Lawrence discussed the figures in the slides for the annual tax revenue.  

 
 
Financial Items 
Budget Amendments 
BA-2021-076 



 
 
BA-2021-077 

Departmental Supplies (1,200.00)              
Travel (872.34)                 

Postage 573.48                   
Maint & Repairs - Equipment 1,498.86               

Retirement 10.05                     
Fica Tax (10.05)                    

Telephone 8,779.15               
Capital Outlay - Equipment (9,129.44)              
Capital Outlay - DP Equipment 350.29                   

Salaries - Regular (24,779.03)            
Maint & Repairs - Vehicles 24,779.03             

Retirement 27.92                     
Hospitalization 10.99                     
Fica Tax (38.91)                    

Capital Outlay - Equipment (1,538.00)              
Contribution to Operating Expenses 1,538.00               

Salaries - PT (2,512.43)              
Bank Fees 276.35                   
Department Supplies 955.21                   
Telephone 840.05                   
Maint & Repairs - Equipment 104.22                   
Maint & Repairs - Tennis Courts 336.60                   

Special Appropriations
Edenton Chowan Partnership 4,700.00               

Veteran's Services
Salaries - PT (4,700.00)              

Balanced -                           -                         
Justification:

Elections
11-4170-182-00
11-4170-181-00

Info Technology

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 

Budget Clean-up for Fy 06/30/21

Recreation

11-6130-187-00

11-6130-321-00

11-4210-321-00
11-4210-510-00
11-4210-520-00

11-4310-121-00

Emergency Managem
11-4330-182-00
11-4330-183-00
11-4330-181-00

11-5110-510-00

Sheriff

11-5110-693-00

11-4310-353-00

Public Health

11-6130-359-00

11-8300-698-00

11-5820-126-00

11-6130-126-00

11-6130-299-00

11-6130-352-00

Admin/Finance
11-4120-325-00
11-4120-352-00

Governing Body
11-4110-299-00
11-4110-311-00



 

Attorney Fees/Suit Costs 5,931.92                 
Professional Fees - Legal 5,931.92               

*Project Lifesaver 470.00                     
*Project Lifesaver 470.00                   

Salaries - Regular (13,778.69)            
Salaries - PT (6,194.70)              

Utilities 71.47                     

Maint & Repairs - Buildings 2,611.61               
Maint & Repairs - Equipment 3,196.60               

Pest Control 771.00                   
Utilities 6,996.14               
Maint & Repairs - Building 1,796.70               

Utilities 2,990.87               
Maint & Repairs - Building 1,539.00               

Alb Commission - General Purpose 233.77                     
Alb Commission - General Purpose 233.77                   
Alb Commission - Health Promotion 216.00                     
Alb Commission - Health Promotion 216.00                   

Maint & Repairs - Equipment (34,521.76)            

Transfer to E911 Fund 34,521.76             

ABC Bottle Tax 1,231.35                 
ABC Bottle Tax 1,231.35               

Fines & Forfeitures
Fines & Forfeitures (44,115.00)            

Debt
Debt Refunding 07/15/20 44,115.00             

Balanced 8,083.04                 8,083.04               

Justification:

Budget Clean-up for Fy 06/30/21

11-5210-440-00

11-5910-499-00

11-9120-750-00

Maintenance
11-4240-121-00
11-4240-126-00

Jail Building

11-3838-310-00

11-4265-351-00
Swain School Bldg

11-4266-331-00
11-4266-351-00

Senior Center
11-3616-536-00
11-4268-600-00

Central Comm
11-4270-352-00

11-9800-980-24

11-4265-210-00

Jailer's House
11-4259-331-00

11-4261-351-00
11-4261-352-00

Courthouse

11-4317-298-00

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 

Tax Administration
11-3346-105-00
11-4140-199-00

Sheriff
11-3431-240-00

11-4265-331-00

11-3616-537-00
11-4268-601-00

Transfers Out

ABC Bottle Tax



BA-2021-078 



 

Maint & Repairs - Buildings 21,864.27             

Hospitalization (10,550.55)            
Maint & Repairs - Red Banks (2,000.00)              
Maint & Repairs - Vehicles (2,621.94)              
Contract Services (6,691.78)              

Hospitalization - Retirees 13,709.12             
Postage 6,339.85               

Hospitalization (4,482.91)              

Salaries - Regular (1,812.73)              
Hospitalization (2,246.59)              
Travel (1,990.00)              

Salaries - PT (7,000.00)              

Salaries - Regular (1,000.00)              
Salaries - OT (1,516.74)              

Solid Waste
Contract Services - Recycling (38,268.00)            
Designated Future Approp (12,394.00)            
Contribution to Regional Authority 48,248.60             
Contribution  to PCG Landfill 114,155.10           
Transfer from COVID19 Relief Fund 73,235.01               
Tipping Fee 3,916.33                 
Solid Waste Disposal Tax 988.15                     
Fund Balance Appropriation 33,602.21               

After School Program
Salaries - PT (18.00)                    
Fica 18.00                     
Food (4.87)                      
Office Supplies (12.67)                    
Program Support 17.54                     
Restitution (1.28)                      
Travel/Transportion 1.28                       

Balanced 111,741.70             111,741.70           

Justification:

Budget Clean-up for Fy 06/30/21

62-3471-894-00
62-3471-510-00
62-3471-520-00
62-3990-990-00

11-6131-126-00
11-6131-181-00
11-6131-221-00
11-6131-261-00
11-6131-291-00
11-6131-390-00
11-6131-311-00

62-4710-822-00
62-4710-993-00
62-4710-690-00
62-4710-690-01

11-4270-121-00
11-4270-122-00

Senior Center
11-4268-126-00

Central Comm

11-4190-311-00

11-8200-325-00
Register of Deeds

11-4180-183-00
Land Records

11-4190-121-00
11-4190-183-00

11-4240-353-00
11-4240-441-00

Central Services
11-8200-183-00

Library
11-6110-351-00

Maintenance
11-4240-183-00
11-4240-351-01

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 



BA-2021-079 

 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin moved to approve the budget amendments as presented. Chair Kirby 
asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
Update on JA Holmes Highschool Project Expenses 
A copy of the report is in the meeting file labeled August 2, 2021. 
 
External Board/Committee Report 
Board members are asked to report on the activities of the external boards to which they have 
been appointed. 
 
Commissioner McLaughlin reported on the CIP Committee. 
 
Chair Kirby noted he is the District Director following the District caucus that recently was held 
by the NCACC. He noted it is the first time the County has been a director. 
 
Manager’s Report 
County Manager Kevin Howard updated the Board on any pending matters. A copy of the 
Project Tracking Sheet is in the meeting file labeled August 2, 2021. 
 
Albemarle/Tideland Retiree Account Update 
He stated that when the County joined Trillium member counties of Albemarle agreed to pay the 
retiree health insurance. He stated that there are about 5 years of funds remaining but the 
managers will look at a plan to work with legislators to fund that account as regionalization was 
pushed by the State. He stated a plan will be forthcoming. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Unemployment (200.00)                 
Advertising (47.94)                    
Hospitalization 247.94                   

Balanced -                           -                         

Justification:

Budget Clean-up for Fy 06/30/21 for TDA

TDA
51-8150-185-00
51-8150-370-00
51-8150-183-00

Account Number Account Description
 Revenue 

(Inc+/Dec-) 
 Expense 

(Inc+/Dec-) 



 
Timely and Important Matters 
Ms. Stallings noted a special meeting on August 30th at 3:30pm. 
 
Adjourn 
Being no further business Commissioner McLaughlin moved to adjourn the meeting. Chair 
Kirby asked for all in favor, the motion passed unanimously (7-0). 
_______________________________________  ______________________________ 
Bob Kirby, Chairman      Susanne Stallings, Clerk 


